
Addendum #2 

City of Orange Cove 

Request for Proposal for Refuse and Hauling Services 

Request for InformaƟon (RFI) 

 

1. Can the City provide tonnage history or volume projecƟons of abandoned items collected?  
2020 = 6373 Tons 
2021 = 6669 Tons 
2022 = 2752 Tons  
2023 = 1170 (2/4 quarters) 
 

2. Does the City envision a bundled price for three containers (trash, recycle, organics) for 
commercial and MF? Yes 
 

3. Is the electronic copy of the proposal to be submiƩed via email to 
DDominguez@cityoforangecove.com? Yes 

 

4. Extending bulky collecƟon to MF residents (2 x year up to 4 items) include each MF property or 
each MF unit?   If the laƩer, can the City provide an esƟmated number of units?  
MulƟ Family Unit. 802 Units. 
 

5. What tonnages can the City provide for 2022? See above. 
 

6. Will the City provide a draŌ of the franchise agreement prior to the due date? No 

 

7. Can the City provide a 2023 rate sheet?  
ResidenƟal = $21.03 
Commercial = $96 Gallons @ $42.06  
2 Industrial accounts = $130.60 (weekly), $908.26 (5x per week). 
 

8. Does the City currently have a SB1383 ordinance in place?  
Yes 
 

9. The RFP menƟons a mandatory bidders meeƟng but there is no date or Ɵme on the schedule. 
When and where would this be taking place?  
No mandatory bidders meeƟng will be needed. 
 

10. Thirty five and 65 gallon carts are not common in Urban areas as the cost per gallon has minimal 
financial impact and they increase the possibility of contaminaƟon in other carts. Was this 



requirement intended to saƟsfy only the needs of Senior ciƟzens and handicapped residents or 
does City expect those sizes to be available to all residents?  
Intended for Senior ciƟzens and handicapped residents. 
 

11. For the Holidays menƟoned, is a one day delay acceptable? 
Yes 
 

12. The RFP menƟons periodic “sweeps” for abandoned items by the awardee but also menƟons 
monthly collecƟon of abandoned items collected by the city crews and consolidated at the City 
Yard. Is the expectaƟon that the city crews will collect the abandoned items and the hauler 
would then pick them up from the city yard once a month? 
Yes, once a month or when called by the department. 
 

13. Can the City clarify whether ResidenƟal Recycling and Green Waste containers are currently 
serviced weekly or every other week? 
Weekly. 
 

14. On Pages 2-3 of the NoƟce, under Commercial CollecƟon, a quanƟty of twenty-three (23) 3-cubic 
yard bins are noted for Recycling Service and no carts. Based on this, should we assume that 
only a porƟon of the of approximately 138 commercial accounts have a recycling program in 
place?  
 
Revised quanƟƟes (page 2 and top of page 3): 
Commercial Accounts Trash/Recycling 
29 – 96 gallon carts 
73 – 3 cubic yard bins 
 
 

15. Would the City be able to provide the past three years of total tonnages collected for Trash, 
Recycling, Green Waste/Organics and ConstrucƟon/DemoliƟon for ResidenƟal, Commercial, and 
Industrial accounts? 
See above. 
 

16. On Page 3 of the NoƟce, special events services are required to be provided at up to nine (9) City 
events. Would the City be able to provide a list of some or all these events, their duraƟon (in 
days) and the esƟmated types (Trash, Recycling and/or Organics) and levels of service (container 
counts and sizes) expected at each?  
At this Ɵme the City does not have enough detailed informaƟon on the 9 events that will occur 
every year but here is a list:  

 Easter 
 Cinco De Mayo 
 4th of July CelebraƟon 
 Farmers Market (3x) 
 Halloween  
 Christmas Tree LighƟng Ceremony 
 Veterans Day  



 
17. On Page 3 of the NoƟce, Trash, Recycling and Organics services are required to be provided at 

eight (8) City faciliƟes and eight (8) parks. Would the City be able to provide the service levels, 
including container counts, sizes and frequencies for these faciliƟes and parks?  
 
All faciliƟes will required a 3-cy bin except Public Works who will need a 20-cy. Below is a list of 
faciliƟes: 
 
City Hall  
Senior Center  
Public Works  
Community Center 
Police Department 
Fire Department 
Water Treatment Plant 
Waste Water Treatment Plant 
 
Skate Park  
Baseball Park 
Sequioa Park 
Sheridan Park 
Eaton Park 
BMX Park 
 

18. On Page 3 of the NoƟce, the collecƟon of abandoned items from the City Yard is required to be  
provided. Would the City be able to provide a list of the types and quanƟƟes (in tons) of 
materials collected as well as the method and frequency of collecƟon? 
 
For Example: Broken furniture and miscellaneous household trash is placed in 25-cubic yard roll 
off containers serviced twice monthly. 
 
The abandoned items will vary but includes furniture, maƩresses, sofas, debris. Toonage will 
vary month to month.  
 

19. Would the City be able to provide the current monthly rates for the following services? See 
above QuesƟon 14 and details below: 

 Standard 3-container 96-gallon ResidenƟal service $21.03 
 AddiƟonal ResidenƟal Trash Cart Not Applicable 
 AddiƟonal ResidenƟal Green Waste Cart Not Applicable  
 AddiƟonal ResidenƟal Recycling Cart Not Applicable 
 Rates for 1-, 1.5-, 2- and 3-cubic yard Commercial trash service for all frequencies (one, 

two, three, or more Ɵmes per weeks) Only 3-cubic yard bins. 
43 = $172.16. 17 = $683.96. 5 = $3215.89. 4=$2051.88. 4=$24.59.21 

 3-cubic yard Commercial Recycling Bin (if any) Same as commercial trash. 
 Any addiƟonal ancillary fees (either per month or per instance) None. 

 
20. Would the City be able to provide the number of addiƟonal ResidenƟal Trash, Green Waste and  



Recycling carts in use? Not at this Ɵme. 
21. As Page 3 of the NoƟce requires the provision of Roll-off and Temporary Bin services, would the 

City be able to provide some or all the following details regarding the current service?  
A. The annual number of Roll-Off hauls and/or number of customers subscribing to 

permanent Roll-Off service and their service levels. 
B. The current rates for roll-off services, including: 

 The rate per haul and any monthly rates for permanent services 
 The disposal/processing rates (per ton) for Trash, Recyclables, Green Waste, and 

ConstrucƟon/DemoliƟon debris. 

Not available at this Ɵme. 

 

22. Pages 14-15 of the NoƟce requires the provision of Bulky Item CollecƟon to MulƟ-Family 
complexes. Would the City be able to provide the total number of mulƟ-family units? 
802 
 

23. Would the City be able to provide current service level informaƟon for its MulƟ-Family 
complexes, including bin counts, sizes and frequencies for each? To be provided soon with a 
separate amendment to the RFP. 
 

24. With regard to MulƟ-Family complexes, will the City’s be requiring each to take a minimum level 
of Recycling and/or Organics service? If so, will that be a specific minimum amount per account 
or per dwelling unit? All complexes are required to comply with SB1383. 
 
 

25. Page 1 of the NoƟce states that “service would include hauler-provided annual route reviews 
and seasonal (twice per-year) waste evaluaƟons as directed by the city.” As SecƟon 18984.5. of 
SB 1383 regulaƟons allow jurisdicƟon to meet their container contaminaƟon minimizaƟon 
requirements by conducƟng either route reviews or waste evaluaƟons, would the City accept 
proposals that include just one of these approaches to meeƟng the container contaminaƟon 
minimizaƟon requirements? Yes. 
 

26. How many residenƟal accounts are actually serviced? Page 1 of the RFP indicates 1509 and 2603. 
Please clarify.  
1509 ResidenƟal accounts. 
 

27. Are all residenƟal accounts billed by the City? Yes. 
 

28. Please provide a Commercial CollecƟon matrix that would indicate the frequency of collecƟon 
for each size container by commodity type (MSW, Recycling, Organics).  
Please see quesƟon 19. AddiƟonal frequency informaƟon will be provided soon. 
 

29. We have no informaƟon on the service levels of the roll-off services. Please provide how many 
roll-off boxes, sizes, and number of services by container size. Please see above. 
 

30. Is the Commercial and Roll-Off invoiced by the Contractor?  



Correct. 

31. Referencing the above quesƟon, if the Commercial and Roll-Off services are invoiced by the 
Contractor, should the pricing proposed include the franchise fees?  
Yes. 
 

32. On Page 2 at the top of the page, the RFP indicates 1Community Clean annually, but on page 15 
it indicates 2 Community Cleanups. Need clarificaƟon on which is correct.  
2 Community Cleanup days per year will be required. 

33. Can we provide truck specificaƟons aŌer the award? They will comply with the RFP 
specificaƟons on equipment. Trucks will need to be purchased to service Orange Cove.  
Truck specificaƟons will need to be provided prior to the contract award. 
 

34. Can the chosen Contractor start the Agreement with some diesel trucks and phase in the CNG 
trucks as they arrive (supply chain issues).  
No. 

35. Please provide annual tonnage by commodity type (MSW, Recycling, Organics). 
See quesƟon 1. 
 

36. There is a discrepancy on the number of City FaciliƟes and City Parks on Page 3 versus Page 11. 
Please clarify which is correct.  
There are 8 FaciliƟes and 6 Parks. All of which require 3 cubic yard bins. Public Works will require 
a 20 cubic yard bin.  
 

 


